
20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

1 
 

East Midlands Airport 
Independent Consultative Committee (ICC) 

 
Monitoring, Environment, Noise and Track (MENT) Sub-Committee 

Friday 16th June 2023 
Via MS Teams 

Present:  

Title Name Initial  

Independent Chair Mr G Liguori   

Independent Secretariat Mrs C Pull   
 

Organisation: 

Title Name Initial  

WHICH Mr I Jones   

Melbourne Civic Society Mr M Keay   

Derbyshire Association of Local Councils Cllr S Marbrow   

Kings Newton Residents Association Mr S Leech   

Rushcliffe Borough Council Cllr A Brown   

Leicestershire County Council Cllr T Pendleton   

SAVE Mr E Green   

Nottinghamshire County Council Cllr M Barney  
 

East Midlands Airport (EMA): 

Title Name Initial  

MAG Head of ESG and Environmental Strategy Mr A Freeman AF 

EMA Commercial Director Mr C Lane CL 

MAG Community Engagement Coordinator Miss A Green  

MAG Planning Manager Mr J Bottomley  JB 

MAG Environment & Energy Manager Mr M Churley MC 

Future Airspace Consultation Manager - 
Manchester 

Mr J Challis 
JC 

MAG Flight Evaluation Unit (FEU) Advisor Ms D Patton DP 

MAG Flight Evaluation Unit Manager Mr D Smith  
 

Apologies & Absences Name Initial  

EMA Community Engagement Manager Ms C Hempson   

DHL Aviation Ltd Mr A O’Neill   

MAG Future Airspace Consultation Senior Project 
Manager 

Ms S Robinson 
  

People Against Intrusive Noise (PAIN) Mr R Sutton   
 

Agenda 
Item  

Description  

1 Welcome and Apologies: 
 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

2 
 

The Chair outlined recent changes to the membership. The representative from 
Rushcliffe Borough Council is now Cllr Brown. He replaces Cllr Edyvean. The Chair 
thanked Cllr Edyvean for his contributions to the work of the committee and the 
support given when he first started the role as chair.  
The Chair also thanked Cllr Marbrow for stepping into the Vice Chair position until 
the end of the current electoral period. 
 
Mr M Keay replaces Dr Paul Grimley as representative for the Melbourne Civic 
Society.  

2 Declaration of Interest: 
 
None 

3 Minutes of the Last Meeting and Matters Arising: 
 
The Chair highlighted two inaccuracies in the minutes of the previous meeting. 
The penultimate paragraph of page 3 contains a random letter B and page 9, AOB the 
word “place” should read “page”.  
 
The previous minutes will be taken as approved when the above amendments have 
been made. 
 
Matters arising: 
 
Action 3a (confidential marking process) is carried over to the July meeting.  
A member queried the above action which has been outstanding for some time and 
asked for a speedy resolution. The Chair advised members in the interim to treat 
everything as not confidential unless advised otherwise. The process will be 
confirmed as part of the updated ICC Constitution by the July general meeting if not 
before. AF agreed, NAP is in public domain and encouraged to share.  
 
Action 5(ii) (AECOM model data sharing) and Action 5(iii) (sharing of Water Research 
Council research) are included in item 8 of today’s agenda. 
 
All other actions from September 2022 meeting are complete. 
 
Actions from previous meetings: 
Action 4 (questions raised in the Melbourne Civic Society noise survey report and 
departure route noise abatement report). Melbourne Civic Society were taking the 
airport responses to their committee and will be in touch with their views. The 
outcome is to be discussed at a meeting to be arranged with Martin Keay (MK) & AF.  
As MK is new to the ICC, the Chair offered to meet to explain the workings of the ICC 
and MENT. 
 
New Action 4: MK to send his availability to the Chair to arrange a meeting to 
discuss the workings of the ICC & MENT. 
 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

3 
 

Action 5(i) A meeting is scheduled for the 17th of July 2023. The Chair asked MC to 
communicate with whole group when the meeting details are confirmed. 
Action 5(ii) is complete. 
 
Action 6(i) is on today’s agenda at item 6. 
Action 6(ii) is complete. 
Action 7 is complete. 

4 An update by the Chair: 
 
The Chair recently attended a UKACC working group meeting where the upcoming 
AGM was discussed. One of the main AGM agenda items is Noise Action Plans and 
the interaction between DEFRA, DfT and airports on such plans. 
A fuller update in terms of the working groups output will be given at the ICC general 
meeting in July. 

5 Noise-related fees and charges: 
 
A paper was circulated in advance, taken as read and is available on SharePoint. 
 
The Chair thanked CL for responding to his questions in the paper. 
 
CL gave an overview of the key points of the paper.  
 
A member praised the airport for their progress in this area. He advised that 
residents regularly approach him to discuss the issue of what they believe to be 
increased aircraft noise. He asked if it is possible to have some simple resource which 
shows the improvement made in this area over the last 5 years. AF highlighted the 
various types of data included in the NAP which will be discussed in item 6 of this 
meeting and asked the member to contact him if he required additional information. 
The member will refer to this document and ask if he needs anything further.  
 
The Chair asked the Airport if it’s also possible to look at data research on noise 
perception. AF advised that this is possible and will be brought as a future agenda 
item.  
 
Action 5: AF to look into data on noise perception and ensure this is included as a 
future MENT agenda item at the next agenda setting meeting.  
 
A member queried if the 25% night-time surcharge applies to all passenger aircraft, 
or only certain noise categories. CL responded that the surcharge applies to all 
passenger aircraft operating at night. 
 
He also questioned if the same timing principal applies on shoulder periods, for fees 
and charges on passenger aircraft. CL advised that the same principal applies to all 
passenger and cargo aircraft.  
 
Finally, he queried the chapter 14 aircraft incentive and asked if the Airport believed 
this would encourage more aircraft to operate at night. CL responded that he doesn’t 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

4 
 

believe this will encourage more night flights. The time of day those flights operates 
is very much based on the operational programme of carrier and network. He 
doesn’t foresee that this would have this unintended consequence. 
 
A member echoed the point of perception on an increase in noise as he faces the 
same issue in Melbourne, Kings Newton and Wilson. He believes that this perception 
is due to the volume of aircraft now flying on the edges of the swathes, particularly 
at night, which is creating more noise and disturbance. He would also welcome this 
information. AF advised that information recently provided to the Melbourne Civic 
Society shows that it isn’t the case that more aircraft are flying on the edges of the 
swathes. He highlighted the importance of the word perception. The data shown 
confirms that the airlines are being set a higher bar with regard to flying within the 
departure routes and they are meeting the challenge. 

6 Noise Action Plan (NAP) 2024-2028 Consultation: 
 
AF thanked members for their contributions during the pre-consultation period. The 
draft NAP is now out for consultation.  
 
He covered some of the key points of the new NAP in a presentation.  
 
AF advised that the team welcome individual and organisational responses to the 
consultation prior to the closing date of 31st July 2023. He also suggested that the 
ICC could respond. A slide was shown with ways to submit responses. There is a host 
of information available on the website.  
 
The Chair responded to the point of an ICC response. He said that the consensus of 
members was that this isn’t feasible due to differing views and suggested individual 
responses would be better. He offered to collate views in a composite document and 
asked interested members to approach him outside of the meeting should they want 
to respond in this way. 
 
A member raised a question on the Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS). Kings 
Newton is not currently part of this scheme; however, this area is under a busy flight 
path. Residents are approaching him to request if their properties can be included. 
He asked if a review be done on the areas covered. AF advised the scheme has been 
around for several decades. If you reassess the scheme using the same criteria it 
would lessen the numbers of eligible homes. This isn’t something the Airport 
currently considers attractive and in the draft NAP 2024-2028 there is no proposal to 
reduce SIGS eligibility. In fact, the draft NAP actually proposes that SIGS support be 
increased for qualifying properties.  
 
The Chair asked if the grant scheme applies to those affected by training flights. AF 
agreed to check the noise modelling used when the scheme was defined. 
 
Action 6 (1): AF to explore if training flights are included in the modelling used to 
define the SIGS contours and eligible zones. 
 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

5 
 

The member also requested that the Airport explain how the SIGS footprint was 
calculated. 
 
Action 6 (2): The Airport to provide information on how the original SIGS footprint 
was developed. 
 
A member asked if a website could be created that would enable residents covered 
by the SIGS  to look at what has already been provided and if other help is available. 
Could a simple set of criteria be published or made available? AF explained that the 
scheme is quite complex. Interested residents are pointed to the management 
agents contracted to run the scheme. This has been the most effective way in the 
past. A new web portal development is proposed in the draft NAP, this is intended to 
provide a lot of helpful information for communities around items such as noise 
performance. This won’t however help with the member’s question. AF will take the 
member’s request away and find out if there is a solution. He asked the member to 
include this point in a response to the NAP consultation. 
 
Action 6 (3): The Airport to consider if a web portal is feasible for SIGS and related 
matters. 
 
A member asked when residents can reapply for SIGS. He requested that there is a 
clear response to enable the committee to spread the word in the community. AF 
advised that following various steps and sign off, the new NAP should be published in 
January 2024. If the relevant action is approved, he expects SIGS will be open for 
reapplications after 20 years from April 2024. The Airport will work with the 
management agent to ensure that the right support is in place. 
 
A member asked for confirmation that there were fewer night flights when scheme 
was established.  
 
Action 6 (4): AF will confirm if there are fewer night flights now than when SIGS 
was established. 
 
Another member stated that it’s the frequency, that there are more night flights than 
there were previously. He has concerns over the expectations of residents regarding 
the number of applications and how they will be dealt with. 
 
AF closed by urging members to respond to the consultation using the form on the 
website or by emailing directly. The Chair will email members to remind them to act. 
 
Action 6 (5): The Chair to email ICC members to encourage individual responses to 
the NAP consultation. – action completed 16 June 2023 
 
AF reiterated the importance of the point above by sharing that he was recently 
interviewed on BBC Radio Leicester to discuss the NAP. A survey had been conducted 
of listeners to understand the noise impact of the airport. None of the people 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

6 
 

interviewed said that noise was an issue for them, even at night. The Airport is keen 
that all views are taken on board and not just those of a few. 

7 Sustainable Development Plan (SDP) – Environment Plan: 
 
A paper was circulated in advance, taken as read and is available on SharePoint. 
 
JB talked through the key points of the paper and gave an explanation as to why the 
plan is taking longer to finalise than the Airport had envisaged. 
 
A member asked if there is a draft version of the plan available. JB advised that public 
consultation should be in Autumn 2023. He will discuss the feasibility of sharing a 
draft version of the SDP with the ICC prior to the public consultation with the Chair.  
 
Action 7: JB to discuss with the Chair how and when a pre-consultation draft of the 
SDP can be shared with ICC members given the timing of ICC meetings and 
consultation timescales. 
 
A member asked for clarity on who administers the BREEAM Award. JB advised that 
this is a standard applied by the Building Research Establishment. AF gave some 
additional detail on this. 

8 Water Management Update: 
 
A paper was circulated in advance, taken as read and is available on SharePoint. 
 
MC took members through a presentation which included the new structure of the 
team. 
 
A member thanked MC for his presentation and praised the team for providing the 
additional data requested. MC thanked the member for his feedback. 
A member asked if the data is being supplied to the angling club. MC confirmed that 
all data provided to the EA is also shared with DRAC.  
 
A member asked if de-icer captured on the apron can be reused to reduce the 
amount released into the brook. MC explained the current process and advised this 
is taken offsite for disposal. Unfortunately, there are currently insufficient volumes of 
de-icer available in the UK to offer the facility to recycle and reuse. The Airport will 
continue to monitor this situation. 
 
The Chair advised that Action 8(i) AECOM and Water Council Research actions which 
remain outstanding to be closed off on the 6th of Oct 2023 meeting. 
 
Action 8 (1): Outcomes to the AECOM and Water Council Research actions that 
remain outstanding are to be brought to the 6 October 2023 meeting so that they 
can be closed off.  
 
The Chair requested an acronym explainer to be added to the slides. 
 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

7 
 

Action 8 (2): MC to include an acronym explainer from next meeting onwards 
 
The Chair requested that the date of the working group be confirmed and shared. 
MC confirmed  the  agenda for the meeting that will take place on the 17th of July 23 
will be shared   
 
Action 8 (3) : MC to firm up the 17 July meeting directly with members of the 
working group (Simon Leech, Ray Sutton, Cllr Trevor Pendleton and the Chair) and 
DRAC members. – action completed 

9 Environment Reports: 
 
A paper was circulated in advance, taken as read and is available on SharePoint. 
 
DP took members through a report summary presentation. 
 
A member stated that he has experienced high levels of overflying, particularly this 
week which started at approximately 9am. He asked why aircraft are flying over Main 
Street as this final approach line is nowhere near the regular approach line. If the 
aircraft flew further before turning, the residents wouldn’t be as directly affected. He 
questioned who makes the decision of where and when Ryanair conduct training 
flights. He would like to meet with someone to understand the system. DP 
responded that training flight circuits have previously been shared with MENT 
members. The current issues are possibly due to the aircraft operating on Runway 09 
(easterly operations). These flights are dictated to by other airport traffic which 
makes their path less flexible. The Airport are open to reviewing practises as part of 
the new NAP. The Airport were aware of some overflying during training flights by 
new operators on Runway 27 (westerly operations). The Airport has already 
approached these operators to ensure they’re mindful to avoid certain areas and use 
agreed paths where possible. The Airport will take on board his comments and note 
them. DP advised the Airport are open to have a meeting and are always happy to 
provide another update on training flights. The member asked for confirmation of 
who oversees training flights. DP confirmed that ATC are ultimately in charge of 
training flights and the circuits they take.  
The Chair suggested a meeting between the member and DP. 
 
Action 9 (1) : DP and SL to arrange a meeting to discuss training flights and report 
back to 6 Oct 2023 MENT 
 
A member asked when data on noise contours area for 2022 and 2023 will be 
available. DP responded that the 2022 data on noise contours is being finalised and 
will be shared as soon as possible. This is likely to be at the next MENT. The 2023 
data is incomplete as we are still in 2023. Noise contours data for 2023 will therefore  
be shared in 2024.  
 
The member also asked if it is possible to share quarterly data, including the first 
quarter of 2023. DP advised that it isn’t possible to provide quarterly data as noise 
contours are produced annually. She advised members that past Environment 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

8 
 

Reports produced for MENT contain historic quarterly data and that this can be used 
to draw comparisons, rather than adding further information to an already busy 
table. 
 
The member raised a question on the peak noise report and the fact that 747–400s 
are still operating, including at night. In a previous meeting the Airport advised that 
this data was being used to challenge airlines and he asked for feedback on the type 
of challenges being raised and the result. DP advised that airline engagement can be 
added into this item for the next meeting. She advised that all 747 aircraft have been 
removed at night and the only QC4 aircraft remaining is a 767 and this aircraft is 
being removed from service imminently. There are no fines currently in place for 
aircraft during the day. This measure is proposed in the new NAP for consultation 
and would give more opportunities to have further discussions with airlines about 
daytime operations and noise levels.  
 
Action 9 (2) : EMA to provide an overview of working with airlines to resolve issues 
by next MENT 6 Oct 2023.  
 
A member questioned the lack of information in the report on aircraft departing 
from Runway 27 and flying due west. Melbourne residents have observed this with 
least one flight per hour. DP advised that this is likely to be training flights as there 
are no routine departures in this area. Around 20 departing aircraft flights out of 
every thousand departing Runway 27 are recorded as being off track. Track keeping 
on Runway 27 is currently at 98%. DP asked the member to provide specific flight 
information and she will investigate. The member added that some of the flights are 
propellor aircraft. DP advised that propellor aircraft operate under visual flight rules. 
She suggested that this be discussed and clarified at the up-coming meeting with the 
Melbourne Civic Society.  

10 Future Airspace Update: 
 
A paper was circulated in advance, taken as read and is available on SharePoint. 
 
JC took members through a presentation on the DVOR (Doppler VHF Omni-
directional Range) Project (concerned with the removal from service of some of 
these ground based navigational aids). The plan is to provide ‘substitutions’ for the 
existing Standard Instrument Departures independent of these ground based 
navigational aids. There will be no change to the existing path or vertical profile of 
aircraft using these substitutions. Any change will be valid for five years and will then 
need to be replaced by the output of the Airspace Change process or the process will 
need to be repeated. 
 
A member asked what the outside risks are with regards to safety. JC responded that 
the CAA must be assured that the aircraft are equipped to do what is required and 
that the 5-year plans are up to date and cognisant of this. They also take an in-depth 
look to make sure there are no underlying issues and nothing has been missed. The 
process must be overseen by a suitably qualified safety advisor and has oversight 
from our own ATC. 



20230616 EMA ICC MENT Adopted Minutes  Company No. 2078271 

9 
 

 
A member requested the dates of the public consultation period. JC advised that 
these have not yet been published and explained the process of how and when dates 
are released. Members will be kept updated as the process progresses. 

11 Any other Business: 
 
None 

12 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 
 
Friday 6th October 2023 @ 10am 
 
There being no further business the Chair thanked everyone for attending and 
declared the meeting closed at 1215.  

 
 


